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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEVARANCE

The Pittsgrove Church, built in 1767, is surrounded by tomb-
stones of its past parishoners. These tombstones also seperate it
from the presently used Pittsgrove Presbyterian Church, built in

log cabin similar to the one which housed the Pittsgrove Log Col-
lege which flourished in the early nineteenth century.

INTERIOR:

uster is original. The wood floor of the first story covers the
original brick floor,., There are double entrance ways and a winder

and plaster above. There is a high pulpit aad boxed-in pews, Both
tials over the door and a 1767 date.

EXTERIOR:

It is three bayed on all sides and the wlndows are twelve over
twelve sash. The shutters are panelled and contain the original

hardware., There are no shutters on the second floor. The door is
five panelled,

The arches over the windows are also typical of the area.

The church and the surrounding buildings are unusual because
they are well preserved in the nineteenth century setting.

h@ revised Description is contained on the following
Continuation Sheets,
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186lL. Also located to the rear of the old church is a reconstructed

The church is one story with side and rear galleries. The bal—~

staircase on either side. The walls have wood paneliea wainscoating

the pulpit and the pews have intricate design work. There are ini-

The church is a two story gable roof square shaped building.

The Pittsgrove Church is typical of the buildihgs found in the
Salem County area.of New Jersey in that it is of Flemish bond brick.
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7. DESCRIPTION

1767 Church:

The 1767 Pittsgrove Presbyterian Church is a two story, square plan
consisting of three bays on a side, with a shingle covered pitch roof.
Surmounting this structure is a cove molded roof over hang, portions
of which on the gable ends support a short pent roof. All windows in
the church are twelve over twelve double hung, with an arch, radiating
voussiors and keystone. The windows across the first floor contain
beveled three panel shutters. Entrance to the church is obtained through
two, ten panel doors, one of which is located in the northeast corner
and the other in the southeast, under the second floor end bay.

The floor plan is basically that of one room, with a gallery
extending across three sides, supported on enlarged turned ballusters.
All walls are paneled facia surmounted by a ballustrade. A box pulpit is
the focal point of the nave, and is reached by a small stair. The
pulpit front is paneled with a central three sided protrusion for the
speaker, which resembles the traditional octagonal pulpit form. The
entire box pulpit is surmounted by a tester which echoes the pulpit in
plan. The interior also features a segmental barrel vault formed of
plaster.

1864 Church:

Pittsgrove Presbyterian Church is a pitch roof basilican form,
of five bays with a protruding, central, frontal tower. This Italian
Romanesque building (which dates circa 1864) has a small pitch roof and
a 20th century rear addition. The church is a common bond brick struc-
ture, the facade of which takes the form of a pedimented pavilion with
an imposed square tower. Both the tower and edges of the front facade
are decorated with wide brick pilasters, each with a long inset panel.
Surmounting the tower is an octagonal wood pavilion, with a frame
octagonal spire. Each bay has a large round head, arched opening,
containing a double round head arch, surmounted by a central oculis.
A pair of windows of this type flank the tower on the front facade.
Entrance to the church is obtained through a round arch opening artri-
culated with brick coining and voussiors. Features of the second floor
are a Romanesque tri-part arch window, surmounted by an oculis.

The interior is not distinguished. Therefore, it is not felt to
be noteworthy. The church is presently used for all church activities
and services.
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7. DESCRIPTION (continued)

Outbuildings, etc.:

Situated to the rear of the 1767 church is a c. 1941, reconstruction
one story log cabin. The logs are square hewn with dove tailed corners
and rest upon wide bonds of chinking brick. All windows are six over six
double hung. The roof is a medium shingle covered gable and the gable
ends contain narrow gauge boards and batten.

The 1767 Pittsgrove Church is surrounded by a cemetery, containing
the tombstones of early members of the church. BAmong the deceased mem-
bers are twenty-six men of the Revolution, eight of the War of 1812 and
eight of the Civil War. This cemetery also serves as a divider, isolatin
the 1767 church from the new 1864 church and the replica log cabin.
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ISTATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Pittsgrove Church was organized on April 30, 1941, Situated
in a log cabin, it was the first Presbyterian congregation in present
Salem County. While the church is in Daretown, it takes its name from
the township in which it is located. It shares with the Friends Meet-
ing House at Hancock's Bridge the honor of being one of the two oldest
houses of worship in Salem County.,

The first pastor at the log church was the reveread vavid Evans,
He was a man of great learning and he established a log school house
on the grounds of the church. fvans died in 1751 and was replaced by
the Reverend Nehemiah Greenman, He continued the Reverend'Evans!' work
as pastor and schoolmaster when he was not fleeing from the British
as he was an ardent patriot. It was during his pastorate that a perma-
nent church was built ia 1707,

William Schenck became pastor in 1780. He was a graduate of Prince-
ton and stayed as pastor for seven years. It was during his ministery
that the log school flourished. Accordiag to Sickler, in his history of
Salem County, parents sent their childrea from great distances to be
educated at the Log College has it had come tp be called. The Pittsgrove
Log College ceased after Schenck's pastorate ended, but during its brief
term it educated such responsibl: citizens as doctors, historian.s, and
even an Attorney General for the state of Hew Jersey.

The Pittsgrove Congregation grew rapidly during the early 1800's
and by the time of the Civil War a larger church sas needed., The corner-
stone for the new church was laid in lool. After the building of the
aew structure, the old one was maintained to be used to hold special
services, P

The newer church is noted for the bells that hahg .~
in the steeple. They were made from fifty silver e
dollars, melted and cast into bells. Another feature /<=
of this church is tnhat there are two completerpipe ;
organs in the sanctuary. \“
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

The 1767 Pittsgrove Presbyterian Church exemplifies the phenomenon
of a spread of dominant cultural forms (these being the Quaker vernacular
architectural modes as the dominant form in this area) to a non-dominant
culture ( the Pittsgrove Presbyterians). The church is one of the finer
pieces of rural Quaker type architecture. This is demonstrated in the
plaster gauge molding, stone jack arches carefully proportioned bays;
also in the interior paneling and turned columns.

The 1864 Pittsgrove Presbyterian Church is an example of "Italian
Romanesque" Revival church architecture, which is demonstrated in the
corble table, scroll brackets and Romanesque double arch windows. It
also shows how the "Georgian" church form was dressed in fashionable
garb. Furthermore it exemplifies the provincial architectural
phenomenon in which new styles were not truely understood except in
terms of details (above mentioned).

Both church buildings are fine surviving examples of the above
described architectural types. The 1767 Pittsgrove Church is one of
the two oldest houses of worship in Salem County.

Between 1712 and 1714 the region now known as Upper Pittsgrove
began to be settled by Presbyterians from New York, Long Island, New
England and East Jersey. The Presbyterian congregation at Pilesgrove
(now Pittsgrove) was organized April 30, 1741 and consisted of 49 members
(which was considered to be large, as from 8 to 14 was typical at this
time). No record exists on where these people met prior to 1742, when
a log church and school were erected. The church remained until 1765
when due to the deteriorating condition of the structure, a proposal for
a new church was passed. In 1767 a new church structure (built in
Quaker vernacular mode) was completed and replaced the log structure.

The school, which later became known as "Pittsgrove Log College",
prepared young men for further study in the ministry, law, and medicine.
Among the students of the school were Robert G. Johnson, who became
Salem County's first historian, well known citizen and landowner.
Pastors of the Pittsgrove Church also served as teachers in the school
until 1786, when church law allowed others to teach. A replica of the
Pittsgrove College now stands on the exact site of the original log
school and serves as a monument to the religious spirit upon which
the community was founded.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

The Pittsgrove congregation, like many other Presbyterian groups,
were activists during the War of Independence. Dr. Isaac Harris, a
ruling elder in the Church, was a member of the first committee of
Salem Patriots and represented the county at provincial meetings.
John Dickenson, Jacob DuBois and Dr. Harris were members of the county
committees of correspondence, and after war broke out Dr. Harris served
as surgeon with the colonial troops.

During the Revolution, two companies were formed from the congre-
gation of the Pittsgrove Church. The first company formed September
20, 1775, was the first detachment of Minutemen in Salem County. This
unit was placed under the command of Captain Jacob DuBois and was used
as a home guard to repel British raiders, out of Philadelphia. The
second company commanded by Captain Cornelius Newkirk saw considerable
action at Valley Forge, Brandywine, Mount Holly, Bordentown, Trenton
and Princeton among others.

The bodies of those who fought during the Revolution and in each
succeeding war are interred in the cemetery (surrounding the 1767
Church), which serves as a reminder of the patriotic support given
by the members (past) of the Pittsgrove congregation.

During the 1800's the Pittsgrove congregation had grown suffi-
ciently to warrant the building of a new and larger church. 1In 1864,
the present Pittsgrove Church was constructed and the old church left
empty, only to be used for special services. The newer Church, due
to the strains of a growing congregation, made additions to the church
which served to house Sunday school classes. This church is also
reknowned for its silver toned bells which were cast in Troy and have
contained in them fifty melted silver dollars.

The Pittsgrove Presbyterians have made a significant impact in
the areas of education, religion, local history and architecture all
of which have been mentioned in the above. The Pittsgrove Church
Complex stands as a monument to these past outstanding achievements,
and is viewed with pride by the citizens of Pittsgrove and, more over,
those of Salem County.



